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Vision
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Chission QODtatement

edit Union Limited seeks
| being of its members and
oting thrift and the provision
nancial services in a friendly,
and personalised environment.
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. Financial Prudence Transparency
0 Family Oriented and Friendly
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We know and care about our members’ financial well-being.

OB

Membership is open to present and past past members of the Ministry of Transport
and Mining, the Ministry of Economic Growth and Job Creation and their Agencies and
Departments, employees of the Society, and relatives of the members and employees
doing business with the PWD Co-Operative Credit Union
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ACENDA OF THE

74th Annual General Meeting 2022

. Ascertain that a quorum is present and Call to Order

Prayer of St. Francis of Assisi

Chairman’s Opening Remarks

Apologies for absence

Confirmation of the Minutes of the 73rd Annual General Meeting
Reports of:

The Board of Directors

The Credit Committee

The Supervisory Committee

The Treasurer (including the Audited Financial Statements)
Fixing the Maximum Limit of Borrowing

Appropriation of Undistributed Surplus

Report of the Nominations & Elections Committee

10. Any other Business

11. Adjournment

Celebrating 74 Years of Excellence
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PWD CREDIT UNION LIMITED

« SAVE WISELY

« SPEND WISELY

« THE CREDIT UNION WAY

PLEASE KEEP SAFE WHILE USING YOUR PWD ACCESS
PLUS DEBIT CARD.
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smithas(@cwjamaica.com

Report of the Independent Auditors

June 8, 2022

To the Registrar of Co-operative Societies,
P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited

Report on the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited (the
Credit Union) set out on pages 4 - to 57 which comprise the statement of financial position as at December 31,
2021, statements of profit and loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
siatement of cash flows for the year ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of
P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited as at December 31, 2021, and of it's financial perfermance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs)

Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union
Limited in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (IESBA Code), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Publication of these financial statements

Where P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited publishes these financial statements in any publication,
management is responsible for the content of any other information that is icluded in the publication. The other
information include all content other than the financial statements and cur auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed we conclude that there is 2 material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard,

2021 Annual Report W
74" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Celebrating 74 Years of Excellence
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Report of the Independent Auditors
Responsibility of Management and those charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error. In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing P.W.D.
Co-operative Credit Union Limited ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Credit Union or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited's
financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error in economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

* Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Credit Union’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.
* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Credit Union’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Credit Union to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the business activities
within the Credit Union to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are responsible for the
direction, supervision and performance of the audit. VWe remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicated with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and

timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we

identify during our audit.

Report on additional requirements of the Co-operative Societies Act

We have obtained all the information which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, was necessary for the
purpose of our audit. In our opinion, proper accounting records have been maintained and the financial
statements are in agreement with the accounting records, and give the information required by the Co-
operative Societies Act in the manner so required.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Noel Smith
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Interest Income calculated using the effective interest rate 2021 2020
method: Note $ $
Interest Income
Loans and advances to members 6. 62,879,764 54,712,911
Liquid assets 6. 1,166,228 1,348,029
Financial investments 6. (12,272) 33,360
64,033,720 56,094,300
Interest Expense
Savings deposits 7. 2,248,800 3,030,372
Interest on voluntary shares 7. 2,764,933 2,841,149
Other interest expense 7. 230,063 -
(5,243,796) (5,871,521)
Net Interest income before provision for loan losses 58,789,924 50,222,779
(Increase) / Decrease in provision for loan losses 9.d. (1,800,000)
(4,826,526)
Net interest income after provision 53,963,398 48,422,779
Non-interest income:
Dividend income 673,649 403,718
Gain in market value of investment - 40,000
Other income / (expenses) 3,386,050 (141,987)
Non-interest expense
Loss in market value of investment (373,348) (2,055,825)
Loss on disposal of fixed assets - (2,155)
Total non-interest income / (expense) 3,686,351 (1,756,249)
Gross margin 57,649,749 46,666,530
Less operating expenses 8. 52,689,103 47,237,171
Net income before Honoraria 4,960,646 (570,641)
Honoraria 26. - (100,000)
Net income / (Loss) after Honoraria 4,960,646 (670,641)
Other comprehensive income
Iltems that will not be classified subsequently to profit and loss:
Actuarial gain / (loss) on obligation (278,000) (1,112,000)
Actuarial gain / (loss) on Plan Asset (2,432,000) (719,000)
Change in effect of asset ceiling 3,186,000 1,439,000
Total other comprehensive income / (loss) 476,000 (392,000)
Net profit, being total comprehensive income for the year 5,436,646 (1,062,641)

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finicial statements
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited

Statement of Financial Position

December 31, 2021

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Earning assets
Loans to members

Financial investments
Investment property

Total non current, earning assets)

Non Earning assets
Property, plant and equipment (net)
Retirement benefit asset

Total non-current, non-earning assets)
Total non-current assets
Current assets

Earning assets
Liquid assets
Bank and cash

Total current, earning assets

Non-earning assets
Bank and cash

Receivables

Total current, non-earning assets
Total current assets

TOTAL ASSETS

Note

10.
11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

15.
16.

2021 2020
$ $

390,951,440 365,198,816
36,678,663 16,530,105
9,298,878 9,400,002
436,928,981 391,128,923
7,715,955 6,834,660
7,522,871 6,958,871
15,238,826 13,793,531
452,167,807 404,922,454
23,696,978 40,924,152
423,438 280,657
24,120,416 41,204,809
3,308,144 2,538,833
5,508,558 7,358,267
8,816,702 9,897,100
32,937,118 51,101,909
485,104,925 456,024,363

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finicial statements
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited

Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2021

CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Capital and reserves
Non-Institutional capital

Institutional capital
TOTAL CAPITAL
LIABILITIES

Non Current Liabilities

Interest bearing
External credit

Members' voluntary shares

Savings deposit

Total non-current, interest bearing liabilities
Current Liabilities

Non-interest bearing
Current portion of long term loan

Trade and other payables

Total current, non- interest bearing liabilities
Total current, non- interest bearing liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

TOTAL CAPITAL AND LIABILITIES

Approved on Behalf of the Board
' —-jk.)\_ﬁ i ,Director
ﬂ. ié?’f/ BM \. ,Director
/ ag ,Date

Note

17.

18.
19.
20.

18.
21.

2021 2020
$ $
28,037,803 24,314,864
45572779 44,485,725
73,610,582 68,800,589
3,074,811 -
281,521,033 267,265,626
100,750,953 96,122,642
385,346,797 363,388,267
5,172,447 .
20975009 23,835,507
26,147,546 23,835,507
26,147,546 23835507
411,494343 _ 387.223774
485,104,925 456,024,363

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finicial statements
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Statement of Cash Flows

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Cash flows from (used in) operating activities
Net profit for the year

Adjustments to reconcile net (loss)/ profit for year to net cash

provided by operations
Interest received
Adjustments for interest earned
Depreciation and amortisation expense
Retirement benefit reserve
Adjustments for interest expense

Adjustment to reflect loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Interest paid

Total from operations

Decrease/ (increase) in current assets
Accounts receivables and prepayments

Increase / (Decrease) in current liabilities
Accounts payable and accruals
Adjustments for non-cash gain in market value of investment
Adjustments for non-cash loss in market value of investment
Adjustments for non-cash dividend income
Other adjustments for non-cash items
Dividends received
Net cash provided by operations
Cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Financial investments
Loans to members
Purchase of property, plant and equipment

Net cash flows from (used in) investing activities
Cash flows from (used in) financing activities
Members' voluntary shares

Members' savings deposit

Increase in Permanent share capital

Entrance Fees

Scholarships, share transfer and disaster fund
Dividend paid

Proceeds from borrowings

Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

2021 2020
$ $
5,436,647 (1,062,641)
63,134,598 54,686,234
(64,033,720) (56,094,300)
3,428,462 2,974,858
(564,000) 460,000
5243795 5,871,521
- 2,155
(5,628,257) (6,607,769)
7,017,525 230,058
1,291,650 4,261,906
(2,860,408) 4,620,492
- (40,000)
373,348 2,055,825
(673,649) (403,718)
(192,042) -
673,649 403,718
5,630,073 11,128,281
(20,148,558) 984,261
(25,194,566) (73,736,071)
(3,835,333)  (4,454,826)
(49,178,457) (77,206,636)
14,255.408 19,887,565
4,628,311 12,398,262
86,875 71,926
15,450 10,450
- (125,000)
. (164,657)
8,247,258 -
27,233,302 32,078,546
(16,315,082) (33,999,809)
43,743,642 77,743,451
27,428,560 43,743,642

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these finicial statements
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

1. Identification and principal activity

P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited (the credit union) is registered under the Co-operative Societies
Act of Jamaica. The registered office of the Credit Union is located at 147 Maxfield Avenue, Kingston 10.

The Credit Union’s main activities are the promotion of thrift, the provision of loans to members exclusively
for provident and productive purposes, and to receive the savings of its members either as payments on
shares or as deposits.

The Credit Union is exempt from Income Tax under Section 59 (1) of the Co-operative Societies Act and
Section 12 of the Income Tax Act.

The Credit Union employed 9 permanent persons as at December 31, 2021 (2020: 9).

The Credit Union is a member of and is supervised by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League
(JCCUL).

2. Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and have been
prepared under the historical cost convention.

3. IFRS compliance and adoption

Standards, interpretations and amendments effective current year

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been issued which became effective during the current financial
year, and which the Credit Union has not early adopted. The Credit Union has assessed the relevance of all
such new standards, interpretations and amendments and has adopted the following as follows:

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions — Amendment to IFRS 16
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 2020.
Key requirements

In May 2020, the IASB amended IFRS 16 Leases to provide relief to lessees from applying the
IFRS 16 guidance on lease modifications to rent concessions arising as a direct consequence of
the covid-19 pandemic. The amendment does not apply to lessors.

As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a covid-19 related rent
concession from a lessor is a lease madification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for
any change in lease payments resulting from the covid-19 related rent concession the same
way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease

modification.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3. IFRS compliance and adoption continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments effective current year continued

The practical expedient applies only to rent concessions occurring as a direct consequence of
the covid-19 pandemic and only if all of the following conditions are met:

(a) The change in lease payments results in revised consideration for the lease that is
substantially the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately
preceding the change.

(b) Any reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before
30 June 2021 (for example, a rent concession would meet this condition if it results in
reduced lease payments before 30 June 2021 and increased lease payments that
extend beyond 30 June 2021).

(c) There is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

Transition

Lessees will apply the practical expedient retrospectively, recognising the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings
(or other component of equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of the annual reporting period in
which the amendment is first applied.

The information required by paragraph 28(f) of IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors is not required to be disclosed.

A lessee will apply the amendment for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 June
2020. Earlier application is permitted, including in financial statements not yet authorised for
issue at 28 May 2020.

Impact

The amendment to IFRS 16 will provide relief to lessees for accounting for rent concessions
from lessors specifically arising from the covid-19 pandemic. While lessees that elect to apply
the practical expedient do not need to assess whether a concession constitutes a modification,
lessees still need to evaluate the appropriate accounting for each concession as the terms of
the concession granted may vary.

Standards, interpretations and amendments but not yet effective

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been issued which were not effective at the date of the statements
of financial position, and which the credit union has not early adopted. The credit union has assessed the
relevance of all such new standards, interpretations and amendments, has determined that the following
may be relevant to its operations and concluded as follows:

Covid-19 Related Rent Concession beyond june 30, 2021 - Amendment to
IFRS 16, Leases.

Effective January 1, 2021
This amendment extends by one year the relief available to lesees to account for COVID - 19

related rent concessions. The original practical expedient only covered rent concessions that
reduced lease payments due on or before June 30, 2021.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3. IFRS compliance and adoption continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments but not yet effective continued

The practical expedient permits lessees not to assess wheather eligible COVID - 19 related rent

concessions are lease modifications, and to account for them as if they were not lease

modification.

After the amendments, eligible rent concessions are those as a 'direct consequence’ of

COVID -19 and for which:

e the revised consideration for the lease is 'substantially the same' as or less than the
consideration for the lease before the concession;

e any reduced payments were originally due on or before June 30, 2022, and

s there are no other 'substantive changes to the lease.

The practical expedient is optional and must be applied consistently to all lease contracts with

similiar characteristis and in similiar circumstances.

A lessee that chose to apply the original practical expedient must consistently apply the

extension to eligible contracts with similiar characteristics and in similiar circumstances.

This means that a company may be required to reverse previous lease modification accounting

for a rent concession that was ineligible for the original version of the practical expedientbut

becomes eligible under the extension.

There is no practical expedient for lessors.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to IAS 16
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.
Key requirements

The amendment prohibits entities from deducting from the cost of an item of property, plant and
equipment (PP&E), any proceeds of the sale of items produced while bringing that asset to the
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds from selling such items, and the costs
of producing those items, in profit or loss.

Transition

The amendment must be applied retrospectively only to items of PP&E made available for use
on or after the beginning of the earliest period presented when the entity first applies the
amendment.

Onerous Contracts — Costs of Fulfilling a Contract — Amendments to IAS 37
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022.

Key requirements

In May 2020, the IASB issued amendments to |IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets to specify which costs an entity needs to include when assessing whether a
contract is onerous or loss-making.

The amendments apply a ‘directly related cost approach’. The costs that relate directly to a
contract to provide goods or services include both incremental costs (e.g., the costs of direct
labour and materials) and an allocation of costs directly related to contract activities (e.g.,
depreciation of equipment used to fulfil the contract as well as costs of contract management
and supervision). General and administrative costs do not relate directly to a contract and are
excluded unless they are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited

Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3.

IFRS compliance and adoption continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments but not yet effective continued

Transition

The amendments must be applied prospectively to contracts for which an entity has not yet
fulfilled all of its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies
the amendments (the date of initial application). Earlier application is permitted and must be
disclosed.

Impact

The amendments are intended to provide clarity and help ensure consistent application of the
standard. Entities that previously applied the incremental cost approach will see provisions
increase to reflect the inclusion of costs related directly to contract activities, whilst entities that
previously recognised contract loss provisions using the guidance from the former standard, |IAS
11 Construction Contracts, will be required to exclude the allocation of indirect overheads from
their provisions. Judgement will be required in determining which costs are “directly related to
contract activities”, but we believe that guidance in IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers will be relevant. There is no transition relief for first-time adopters.

Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current - Amendments to IAS 1
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023.
The IASB has tentatively agreed to defer the effective date to 1 January 2023.

Key requirements
In January 2020, the Board issued amendments to paragraphs 69 to 76 of IAS 1 Presentation
of Financial Statements to specify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or non-
current.
The amendments clarify:

What is meant by a right to defer settlement

Is that a right to defer must exist at the end of the reporting period
That classification is unaffected by the likelihood that an entity will exercise its deferral right.
That only if an embedded derivative in a convertible liability is itself an equity instrument, would
the terms of a liability not impact its classification

Right to defer settlement

The Board decided that if an entity’s right to defer settlement of a liability is subject to the entity
complying with specified conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions at that date.

Existence at the end of the reporting period
The amendments also clarify that the requirement for the right to exist at the end of the

reporting period applies regardless of whether the lender tests for compliance at that date or at
a later date.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3. IFRS compliance and adoption continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments but not yet effective continued
Management expectations

IAS 1.75A has been added to clarify that the ‘classification of a liability is unaffected by the
likelihood that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period’. That is, management’s intention to settle in the short
run does not impact the classification. This applies even if settlement has occurred when the
financial statements are authorised for issuance.

Meaning of the term ‘settlement’

The Board added two new paragraphs (paragraphs 76A and 76B) to IAS 1 to clarify
what is meant by ‘settlement’ of a liability. The Board concluded that it was important
to link the settlement of the liability with the outflow of resources of the entity.
Settlement by way of an entity’'s own equity instruments is considered settlement for
the purpose of classification of liabilities as current or non-current, with one exception.
In cases where a conversion option is classified as a liability or part of a liability, the
transfer of equity instruments would constitute settlement of the liability for the
purpose of classifying it as current or non-current. Only if the conversion option itself
is classified as an equity instrument would settlement by way of own equity
instruments be disregarded when determining whether the liability is current or non-
current.

Unchanged from the current standard, a rollover of a borrowing is considered the extension of
an existing liability and is therefore not considered to represent ‘settlement’.

Transition

Many entities will find themselves already in compliance with the amendments.
However, entities need to consider whether some of the amendments may impact
their current practice. Entities need to carefully consider whether there are any
aspects of the amendments that suggest that terms of their existing loan agreements
should be renegotiated. In this context, it is important to highlight that the
amendments must be applied retrospectively.

Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendment to IAS1, Presentation of Financial
Statements, and IFRS Practice Statement 2, Materiality Judgements)

Effective January 1, 2023.

The amendment continues the IASB Board's clarification on applying the concept of

materiality. These amendments help companies provide useful policy disclosures

including:

* requiring companies to disclose their material accounting policies rather than their
significant accounting policies;

e clarifying that accounting policies related to imaterial transactions, other events or
conditionsare themselves imaterial and do not need to be disclosed; and

e clarifying that not all accounting policiesthat relate to material transactions, other
eventsor conditions are themselves material.

The IASB Board also amended IFRS Practice Statement 2 to include guidance and
examples on the application of materiality to accounting policy disclosures.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

3. IFRS compliance and adoption continued

Standards, interpretations and amendments but not yet effective continued

Defination of Accounting Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8, Accounting Policies,
Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors)

Effetive January 1, 2023

The amendment clarifies how companies distinguish changes in accounting policies
from changes in accounting estimates, with a primary focus on definition of and
clariifications on accounting estimates. The distinction between the two is important
because changes in accounting policies are applied retrospestively, wheras changes in
accounting estimates are applied prospectively.

The amendments clarify that accounting estimates are monetary amounts in the
financial statements subject to measurement uncertainity. The amendments also clarify
the relationship between accounting policies and accounting estimates by spesifying
that a company develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objectives set out by an
accounting policy.

The credit union has concluded that all other standards, interpretations and amendments to existing
standards which are published but not yet effective are either relevant to its operation but will have no
material impact on adoption; or are not relevant to its operation and will therefore have no impact when they
come into effect. This includes amendments resulting from IASB's ongoing improvement project.

4. Significant Accounting Policies

a. Going concern

These financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting principles applicable to a going
concern, which assumes that the company will continue to operate in the foreseeable future and will be able
to realise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations. Should the company be
unable to continue as a going concern, the basis of reporting the carrying values of assets may be adjusted.

b. Presentation of financial statements

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
accounting policies have been applied consistently to all the year's presented, unless otherwise stated.

i. Functional and presentation currency

The financial statements are presented in Jamaican dollars, which is the company's functional and
presentation currency.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued
b. Presentation of financial statements continued

il. Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported amounts of,
and disclosures related to, assets, liabilities, contingent assets and contingent liabilities at the statement of
financial position date and the income and expenses for the year ended.

The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and / or various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making
the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources.
Actual amounts could differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period,
or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

The significant areas where key assumptions concerning future, and other sources of estimation uncertainty,
at the statement of financial position date that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amount of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are as follows:

(i) Allowance for losses

In determining amounts recorded for allowance for losses in the financial statements, management makes
judgments regarding indicators of impairment, that is, whether there are indicators that suggest there may
be a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows from accounts receivable and other financial
assets, for example, repayment default and adverse economic conditions. Management also makes
estimates of the likely estimated future cash flows from impaired financial assets, including the net realizable
value of underlying collateral, as well as the timing of such cash flows. The adequacy of the allowance
depends on the accuracy of these judgments and estimates.

(ii) Impairment of financial assets
Measurement of expected credit loss allowance

Establishing the criteria for determining whether credit risk on the financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition, determining the methodology for incorporating forward-looking information into the
measurement of expected credit loss (ECL) and selection and approval of models used to measure ECL
requires significant judgement.

The measurement of the expected credit loss allowance for financial assets measured at amortised cost and
FVOCI is an area that requires the use of complex models and significant assumptions about future
economic conditions and credit behaviour (e.g. the likelihood of customers defaulting and the resulting
losses). Management also estimate the likely amount of cashflows recoverable on the financial assets in
determining loss given default. The use of assumptions make uncertainty inherent in such estimates.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued
b. Presentation of financial statements continued

il Critical accounting judgement and key source of estimation uncertainty continued

(iii) Determining fair values

The determination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable market
price requires the use of other generally accepted valuation techniques. Considerable judgment is required
in interpreting market data to arrive at estimates for fair values. Consequently, the estimates of fair value
arrived at may be significantly different from the actual price of the instrument in an arm's length transaction.
It is reasonably possible that outcomes within the next financial year that are different from these
assumptions could require a material adjustment to the carrying amount reflected in the financial
statements.

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with IFRS also assumes that the Credit Union will
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. This means, inter alia, that the statement of
financial position and the statement of income and expenses assume no intention or necessity to liquidate
the Credit Union or curtail the scale of its operations. This is commonly referred to as the going concern
basis. The Board and Management believe that preparation of the financial statements on the going
concern basis continues to be appropriate.

ili. Comparative Information

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform with changes in presentation in
the current year.

C. Foreign currency

Foreign currency transactions are translated at the rates of exchange in effect at the dates of the transaction.
Resulting foreign currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the rates of exchange in
effect at the statement of financial position date. Gains and losses on foreign exchange are recognised in the
income statement.
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P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

d. Interest income

Interests on loans and investments are stated on the accrual basis. Interest income and expense are
recognized in profit or loss using the effective interest method. The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments over the expected life of the financial
instrument to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset or the amortized cost of the financial
liability. The effective interest rate is calculated considering all contractual terms of the financial
instruments, except for the expected credit losses of financial assets. The ‘amortized cost’ of a
financial asset or financial liability is the amount at which the instrument is measured on initial
recognition minus principal repayments, plus or minus any cumulative amortization using the effective
interest method of any difference between the initial amount and maturity amount and adjusted for
any expected credit loss allowance. The ‘gross carrying amount’ of a financial asset is the amortized
cost of a financial asset before adjusting for any expected credit losses. Interest income and expense
is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
(when the asset is not credit-impaired) or the amortized cost of the financial liability. Where a financial
asset has becomes credit-impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest income is calculated in
subsequent periods by applying the effective interest method to the amortized cost of the financial
asset. If the asset subsequently ceases to be credit-impaired, calculation of interest income reverts to
the gross basis.

e. Property, plant and equipment

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost or valuation, less accumulated depreciation
and impairment losses. Cost includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
asset. The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of material and direct labour, and any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for its intended use.

(i) Subsequent costs:

The cost of replacing part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in the carrying amount
of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the cash flow to the Credit
Union and its cost can be measured reliably. The costs of the day-to-day servicing of property, plant and
equipment are recognized in profit or loss.

f. Property, plant and equipment

i Depreciation

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line basis at annual
rates estimated to write off the carrying value of the assets over the period of their estimated useful lives.
Annual rates are as follows:

Office equipment 20%

Furniture and fixtures 10%

Computer software 33.33%
Computer and equipment 20%

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed periodically for impairment, and adjusted if
appropriate, at each statement of financial position date. Where the carrying amount of an asset is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately to its recoverable amount.

All items of property, plant and equipment are de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic
benefit is expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising from disposal or
retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and is recognized in the statement of comprehensive income.
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For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

g. Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalent comprises of cash in hand and
cash at bank.

h. Trade payables

Trade and other payables are obligations on the basis of normal credit terms and do not bear interest.
Payables denominated in foreign currency are translated into Jamaican dollars using the exchange rate at
the reporting date. Foreign exchange gains or losses are included in the Statement of Comprehensive
income.

i. Financial instruments - Classification, recognition, derecognition and measurement

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity. In these financial statements:

e Financial assets comprise loans to members, liquid investment, financial investments, cash resources
and accounts receivable.

¢ Financial liabilities comprise voluntary shares, external credits, interest and non-interest bearing
liabilities.

Recognition and initial measurement

The Credit Union recognises a financial instrument when it becomes a party to the contractual terms of the
instrument. The Credit Union initially recognises loans to members and other assets on the date when they
are originated. All other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognised on the trade date

j- Financial assets
Recognition and initial measurement

The Credit Union recognizes financial assets when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. Financial assets are measured initially at their fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable to
their acquisition. Transaction costs attributable to the acquisition of financial assets subsequently measured
at fair value through profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss when incurred.

Immediately after initial recognition, an expected credit loss allowance (ECL) is recognised for financial
assets measured at amortised cost and investments in debt instruments measured at FVOCI, which results
in an accounting loss being recognised in surplus or deficit when an asset is newly originated.

Classification and subsequent measurement
On initial recognition, financial assets are classified as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) or fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). The Credit Union

determines the classification of its financial assets, based on the business model for managing the financial
assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

]- Financial assets continued
Debt instruments are classified as follows:

e Amortized cost — Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows are
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest revenue is calculated
using the effective interest method and gains or losses arising from impairment, foreign exchange and
derecognition are recognized in profit or loss.

e Fair value through other comprehensive income — Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows and for selling the financial assets, and for which the contractual cash flows are solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. Interest income
is calculated using the effective interest method and gains or losses arising from impairment and foreign
exchange are recognized in profit or loss. All other changes in the carrying amount of the financial assets
are recognized in other comprehensive income. Upon derecognition, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss.

e Mandatorily at fair value through profit or loss — Assets that do not meet the criteria to be measured at
amortized cost, or fair value through other comprehensive income, are measured at fair value through
profit or loss. All interest income and changes in the financial assets’ carrying amount are recognized in
profit or loss.

e Designated at fair value through profit or loss — On initial recognition, the Credit Union may irrevocably
designate financial asset to be measured at fair value through profit or loss in order to eliminate or
significantly reduce an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise from measuring assets or
liabilities or recognizing the gains and losses on them, on different bases. All interest income and
changes in the financial assets’ carrying amount are recognized in profit or loss.

The Credit Union measures all equity investments at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit
or loss except where the entity has irrevocably elected at initial recognition, to present in other
comprehensive income the fair value gains and losses of an equity investment that is neither held for trading
nor contingent consideration acquired in a business combination. In such cases, the cumulative gains and
losses recognized in other comprehensive income are not reclassified to profit or loss on derecognition of
the investment.

Business model assessment

The Credit Union assesses the objective of its business model for holding a financial asset at a level of
aggregation which best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. Information considered in this assessment includes stated policies and objectives and how
performance of the portfolio is evaluated.

Contractual cash flow assessment

The cash flows of financial assets are assessed as to whether they are solely payments of principal and
interest on the basis of their contractual terms. For this purpose, ‘principal’ is defined as the fair value of the
financial asset on initial recognition. ‘Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money, the
credit risk associated with the principal amount outstanding, and other basic lending risks and costs. In
performing this assessment, the Credit Union considers factors that would alter the timing amount of cash
flows such as prepayment and extension features, terms that might limit the Credit Union’s claim to cash
flows, and any features that modify consideration for the time value of money.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

j- Financial assets continued
Reclassifications

The Credit Union reclassifies debt instruments only when its business model for managing those financial
assets has changed. Reclassifications are applied prospectively from the reclassification date and any
previously recognized gains, losses or interest are not restated.

Impairment

The Credit Union recognizes a loss allowance for the expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets, other than debt instruments measured at fair value through profit or loss and equity investments, as
well as financial guarantee contracts and loan commitments not measured at fair value through profit or
loss. Expected credit losses are measured to reflect a probability-weighted amount, the time value of money,
and reasonable and supportable information regarding past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions.

For loans and mortgages the Credit Union records a loss allowance equal to the expected credit losses
resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12-month period, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. For those financial assets for which the Credit
Union assessed that a significant increase in credit risk has occurred, the Credit Union records a loss
allowance equal to the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the assets’
contractual lifetime.

The Credit Union assesses whether a financial asset is credit-impaired at the reporting date. Regular
indicators that a financial instrument is credit-impaired include significant financial difficulties as evidenced
through borrowing patterns or observed balances in other accounts, breaches of borrowing contracts such
as default events or breaches of borrowing covenants and requests to restructure loan payment schedules.
For financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting date, the Credit Union continues to recognize a
loss allowance equal to lifetime expected credit losses.

Loss allowances for expected credit losses are presented in the statement of financial position as follows:

o For financial assets measured at amortized cost, as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the
financial assets;

e For facilities with both a drawn and undraw component where the Credit Union cannot separately identify
expected credit losses between the two components, as a deduction from the carrying amount of the
drawn component.

Any excess of the loss allowance over the carrying amount of the drawn component is presented as a
provision:

e For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income, in other
comprehensive income. The loss allowance does not reduce the fair value carrying amount of the
financial asset in the statement of financial position.

Financial assets are written off when the Credit Union has no reasonable expectations of recovering all or
any portion thereof.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

K. Financial liabilities
Recognition and initial measurement

The Credit Union recognizes financial liabilities when it becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument. At initial recognition, the Credit Union measures financial liabilities at their fair value plus
transaction costs that are directly attributable to their issuance, with the exception of financial liabilities
subsequently measured at fair value through profit or loss for which transaction costs are immediately
recorded in profit or loss.

Subsequent to initial recognition, all financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest rate method. Interest, gains and losses relating to a financial liability are recognized in profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Credit Union derecognizes a financial liability only when its contractual obligations are discharged,
cancelled or expire.

I Investments

Securities acquired or loans granted or other receivables that have a fixed or determined payment
and which are not quoted in an active market are measured at amortised cost. An active market is
one where quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange dealer, broker or other
agency and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s
length basis. Debt investments that the Credit Union has the intent and ability to hold to maturity are
measured at amortise cost. All other investments are measured at fair value through profit and loss
(FVTPL). Loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments are initially measured at cost and
subsequently at amortised cost, calculated on the effective interest rate method, less impairment
losses. Where fair value cannot be reliably measured, they are stated at cost. Where the securities
are disposed of, or impaired, the related accumulated unrealized gains or losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Equity securities are considered impaired when there is a prolonged or significant
decline in fair value below the securities costs. Investments are recognized / derecognized on the day
they are transferred to / from the Credit Union.

Fair value is determined based on quoted market bid price. Where a quoted market price is not
available, the fair value is estimated using discounted cash flow. The estimated future cash flows are
based on management’s best estimates and the discount rate is a market related rate at the reporting
date for an instrument with similar terms and condition.

m. Reverse repurchase agreements

A reverse repurchase agreement (“reverse repo”) is a short-term transaction whereby the Credit Union
buys securities and simultaneously agrees to resell them on a specified date and at a specified price.
Reverse repos are accounted for as short-term collateralized lending and are measured at amortised cost.

The Credit Union enters into reverse repurchase agreements to resell substantially identical investments at
a certain date in the future at a fixed price. The amounts paid are recognized as “securities purchased
under resale agreements” and are collateralized by the underlying securities.

The difference between the purchase and resale considerations is recognized on the accrual basis over the
period of the transaction, using the effective interest method, and is included in interest income.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

n. Loans to members and allowance for loan losses

(1) Loans to members:

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in

an active market and that the Credit Union does not intend to sell immediately or in the near term. Loans
are initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest method, less allowance for loan losses.

(1) Allowance for impaired loans:

Assumptions in determining the allowance for expected credit losses - applicable to 2019.

At each reporting period, financial assets are assessed to determine whether their credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In determining whether credit risk has significantly increased,
management develops a number of assumptions about the factors which impacts the borrower's ability to
meet debt obligations:

Significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are required when calculating the expected credit
losses of financial assets. In measuring the 12-month and lifetime expected credit losses, management
makes assumptions about prepayments, the timing and extent of missed payments or default events. In
addition, management makes assumptions and estimates about the impact future events may have on the
historical data used to measure expected credit losses.

In estimating expected credit losses, the Credit Union develops a number of assumptions as follows:

e The period over which the Credit Union is exposed to credit risk, considering for example,
prepayments, extension options, demand features

e The probability-weighted outcome, including identification of scenarios that specify the amount and
timing of the cash flows for particular outcomes and the estimated probability of those outcomes

e The risk of default occurring on loans during their expected lives and during the next 12 months
after the reporting date

e Expected cash short falls including, recoveries, costs to recover and the effects of any collateral or
other credit enhancements

o Estimates of effective interest rates used in incorporating the time value of money.

¢ The above assumptions are based on historical information and adjusted for current conditions and
forecast of future economic conditions. The Credit Union determines adjustments needed to its
historical assumptions by monitoring the correlation of the probability of default and loss rates with
the following economic variables:

e |Interest rates

e Unemployment rates

¢ Real Gross domestic product Growth

The estimate of expected credit losses reflects an unbiased and probability-weighted amount that is

determined by evaluating a range of possible outcomes that are neither best-case nor worse-case
scenarios. The Credit Union uses judgment to weight these scenarios
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

n. Loans to members and allowance for loan losses continued
Assumptions in determining the allowance for incurred credit losses.

The Credit Union has determined the likely impairment loss on loans which have not maintained the loan
repayments in accordance with the loan contract, or where there is other evidence of potential impairment
such as job losses or economic circumstances. In identifying the impairment likely from these events, the
Credit Union estimates the potential impairment using the loan type, type of loan security, the length of time
the loans are past due and the historical loss experience.

Member loans that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired and all individually
insignificant loans are then assessed collectively, in groups of assets with similar risk characteristics, to
determine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for which there is objective
evidence but whose effects are not yet evident. The general provision assessment takes account of data

from the loan portfolio such as credit quality, delinquency, historical performance and industry economic
outlook.

The guidelines stipulated by the JCCUL require the allowance for loan losses to be stipulated percentages
of total delinquent loans, the percentage varying with the period of delinquency, before considering
securities held against such loans.

The allowance for loan losses required by the PEARLS that is in excess of the requirements of IFRS 9 is
treated as an appropriation of undistributed net income and included in a non-distributable loan loss.

0. Other assets

Other assets are stated at amortised cost, less impairment.

p.  Other payables and accruals

Other payables and accruals are stated at amortised cost.

g. External credits

External credit is measured initially at cost and subsequently at amortised cost
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued
r. Grants

Grants are recognized at fair value initially as deferred income when there is reasonable assurance
that they will be received and the Credit Union will comply with the conditions associated with the
grant. Grants that compensate the Credit Union for expenses incurred are recognized in profit or loss
as other income on a systematic basis in the same periods in which the expenses are recognized.

S. Impairment

The carrying amounts of the Credit Union assets, other than loans to members (see note 3 (f)), are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any
such indication exists, the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated at each reporting date. An
impairment loss is recognized whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its cash-generating unit
exceeds its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. Any cumulative
loss in respect of an available-for-sale investment recognized previously in equity is transferred to
profit or loss.

(i) Calculation of recoverable amount:

The recoverable amount of the Credit Union’s loans and receivables and held-to-maturity
investments is calculated as the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the
original effective interest rate inherent in the asset. The recoverable amount in respect of an
available-for-sale investment is its current fair value. Receivables with a short duration are not
discounted.

(i) Reversals of impairment:
In respect of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity investments and receivables, the
impairment loss is reversed if the subsequent increase in recoverable amount can be related

objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized.

In respect of other assets, an impairment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the
estimates used to determine the recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortization, if no impairment loss had been recognized.

Reversals are recognized in profit or loss, except for available-for-sale equity securities, that are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

t. Fees and dividend

Fee income is recognized when the related service is provided.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

u. Employee benefits

Employee benefits are all forms of consideration given by the Credit Union in exchange for service
rendered by employees. These include current or short-term benefits such as salaries, bonuses, NIS
contributions, annual vacation leave, and non- monetary benefits such as medical care, post-employment
benefits such as pensions and other long-term employee benefits such as termination benefits.

Employee benefits that are earned as a result of past or current service are recognized in the following
manner: Short-term employee benefits are recognized as a liability, net of payments made, and charged as
expense. The expected cost of vacation leave that accumulates is recognized when the employee
becomes entitled to the leave.

Employee benefits comprising pension asset included in the financial statements have been actuarially
determined by a qualified independent actuary, appointed by JCCUL.

The appointed actuary’'s report outlines the scope of the valuation and the actuary’'s opinion. The actuarial
valuations were conducted in accordance with IAS 19, and the financial statements reflect the Credit
Union's pension asset as computed by the actuary. In carrying out their audit, the auditors rely on the work
of the actuary and the actuary’s report.

The employees of the Credit Union participate in a defined-benefit multi-employer pension scheme
operated by JCCUL.

The Credit Union's net obligation in respect of the defined-benefit pension plan is calculated by estimating
the amount of future benefits that employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods; that value is discounted to determine the present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is
deducted. The discount rate is determined by reference to the yield at the reporting date on long-term
government bonds with dates approximating the terms of the related liability. The calculation is performed
by a qualified actuary, using the projected unit credit method.

When the benefits of the plan are improved, the portion of the increased benefit relating to past service by
employees is recognized as an expense Iin profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the average period
until the benefits become vested. To the extent that the benefits are vested immediately, the expense is
recognized immediately in profit or loss.

In respect of actuarial gains and losses that arise in calculating the Credit Union’s obligation in respect of
the plan, to the extent that any cumulative unrecognized actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten percent of the
greater of the present value of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets, that portion is
recognized in profit or loss over the expected average remaining working lives of the employees
participating in the plan. Otherwise, the actuarial gain or loss is not recognized.

Where the calculation results in a benefit to the Credit Union, the recognized asset is limited to the net total
of any unrecognized actuarial losses and past service costs and the present value of any future refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan.
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4. Significant Accounting Policies continued

V. League fees and stabilization dues

JCCUL has determined the rate of calculating league fees at 0.2% (2020: 0.2%) of total assets. These fees
are capped at 10% of the total fees due from the Credit Union movement, calculated by JCCUL. Stabilization
dues are computed at a rate of 0.075% (2020: 0.15%) of saving funds.

5. Financial risk management

The Credit Union’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including currency risk, fair
value interest rate risk, cash flow interest rate nsk and price risk), credit risk, liquidity risk and operational
risk. The Credit Union’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Credit Union’s financial performance.

The Credit Union's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyze these risks to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of reliable and
up-to-date information systems. The Credit Union regularly reviews its risk management policies and
systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

The Board of Directors is ultimately responsible for the established and oversight of the Credit Union's risk
management framework. The Board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as
written policies covering specific areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,use of
derivative financial instruments and non-derivative financial instruments, and investment of excess liquidity.
The Board has established a department headed by a Risk Officer for managing and monitoring risks. In
addition to the above, risk is monitored as follows:

(i) The Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League has established a Risk Assessment Unit which has
regular meetings with Risk Officers from within the Credit Union movement. The objectives of these
meetings are to develop strategies to manage risk in member credit unions.

(ii) Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Credit Union's
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the company. The Supervisory Committee
is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and hoc reviews
of risk management controls and procedures, the result of which are reported to the Supervisory
Committee.

The most important types of risk are credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk and other operational risk.
Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.

a. Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited if the counterparty fails to
meet its obligation. Credit risk arises from P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited's operating activities
from trade receivables and loan notes and financing activities from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with
banks and financial institutions, derivative financial instruments.
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5. Financial risk management continued

a. Credit risk continued

The Credit Union takes on exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that its members, clients or
counterparties will cause a financial loss for the Credit Union by failing to discharge their contractual
obligations. Credit risk is the most important risk for the Credit Union’s business; management therefore
carefully manage its exposure to credit risk. Credit exposures arise principally from the Credit Union’s loans
to members, deposits with other institutions and investment securities. There is also credit risk exposure in
respect of off-Statement of Financial Position, financial instruments e.g. financial guarantees. The Credit
Union structures the levels of credit risk it undertakes by placing limits on the amount of risk accepted in
relation to a single member or Credit Unions of related parties and to geographical and industry segments.

There is a documented credit policy in place which provides guidelines for the Credit Union’s review
process.

Credit review process:

The Credit Union has a Credit Committee whose responsibility involves regular review of the ability of
borrowers to meet repayment obligations.

(i) Loans to members.

The Credit Union’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the individual characteristics of each
member. The Board of Directors has established a credit policy under which each member is
assessed individually for creditworthiness prior to the Credit Union offering them a credit facility.

Loans are not granted to delinquent members, or co-makers of delinquent members.
Loans are not granted for “high risk” investment purposes.

The verification of applicant’s income is undertaken e.g. the last three (3) pay slips are reviewed prior
to the approval of all loans above shares. The Credit Union reserves the right to request additional
information, such as job letter, especially for first time applicants.

Collateral

The Credit Union holds collateral against loans to members in the form of mortgage interests over
property, lien over motor vehicles, other regulated securities over assets, hypothecation of voluntary
shares and deposits held in the Credit Union and guarantees. Estimates of fair values are based on
value of collateral assessed at the time of borrowing and are generally not updated except when a
loan is individually assessed as impaired.

(c) Co-makers are required to have unencumbered (free) voluntary shares or savings which will be
hypothecated.

(d) All items offered as security should be fully insured and the Credit Union must be satisfied as to
the arrangements in place for the future payments of the insurance premium.

(e) Motor vehicles may be used as security, provided that the wvehicle will continue to get
comprehensive insurance coverage until the loan is fully repaid.

2021 Annual Report @
74" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING Celebrating 74 Years of Excellence




PWD Co-operative
Credit Union Limited

P_.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

5. Financial risk management continued

a. Credit risk continued
Approval Limits:

The following persons are authorised to approve loans up to a maximum as follows:

Board of Directors Unlimited
Credit Committee $5,000,000
In-House Credit Committee $500,000
Office Manager $500,000
loans Officer $250,000
Accountant $500,000

Impaired Loans

Impaired loans are loans for which the Credit Union determines that it is probable that it will be unable
to collect all principal and interest due according to the contractual terms of the loan and the security
value is insufficient to cover the loan.

Past due but not impaired loans

These are loans where the contractual interest or principal payment are past due but the Credit Union
believes that the impairment is not appropriate on the basis of the level of security available or the
stage of collection of amounts owed to the Credit Union.

Loans with renegotiated terms

Loans with renegotiated terms are loans that have been restructured due to deterioration in the
member's financial position and where the Credit Union has made concessions that it would not
otherwise consider. Once the loan is restructured, it is classified and monitored.

Allowances for impairment

The Credit Union established an allowance for impairment losses that represents its estimate of
incurred losses in its loan portfolio. The main components of this allowance are a specific loss
component that relates to individually significant exposures, and a collective loan loss allowance
established on a Credit Union basis in respect of losses that have been incurred but have not been
identified on loans subject to individual assessments for impairment.

The Credit Union establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of incurred
losses in respect of loans and other receivables and investments. The Credit Union addresses
impairment assessment in two areas: individually assessed allowances and collectively assessed
allowances.

The Credit Union’s average credit period on the loans granted is 36 Months. The Credit Union has
provided fully for all past due loans over 365 days based on historical experience which dictates that
amounts past due beyond 365 days are generally not recoverable. Impaired Loans to members
between 61 and 365 days are provided for based on an estimate of amounts that would be
irrecoverable, determined by taking into consideration past default experience, current economic
conditions and expected receipts and recoveries once impaired.
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5. Financial risk management continued

a. Credit risk continued
(i) Write-off policy

The Credit Union writes off a loan (and any related allowance for impairment losses) when the
Credit Union determines that the loans are not collectible. This determination is usually made
after considering information such as changes in borrower’s financial position, or that proceeds
from collateral will not be sufficient to pay back the entire exposure.

(i) Deposits and Investments securities
The Credit Union limits its exposure to credit risk by investing mainly in liquid securities, with
counterparties that have high credit quality and Government of Jamaica securities. Accordingly,
management does not expect any counterparty to fail to meet its obligations.
The Credit Union has documented investment and deposit policies in place, which guide in
managing credit risk on deposits and investments. The Credit Union's exposure and the credit
ratings of its counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions
concluded is spread amongst approved counterparties.

(i) Guarantees
The Credit Union’s policy is not to provide financial guarantees on behalf of other Credit Unions
unless the full amount of the guarantee is fully backed by collateral. At 31 December 2021 no
guarantee was outstanding (2020: NIL).

(iv) Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum exposure to credit risk (before
collateral held) which at the statement of financial position date was:

Maximum Exposure

2021 2020
Loans to members 390,951,440 365,198,816
Financial investments 36,678,663 16,530,105
Liquid assets - earning 23,696,978 40,924 152
Receivables and prepayments 5,508,558 7,358,267

456,835,639 430,011,340

There has been no change to the Credit Union's exposure to credit risk or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.
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5. Financial risk management continued

a. Credit risk continued
(v) Receivables

The following table summarizes the Credit Union’s credit exposure for receivables at their
carrying amounts, as categorized by the customer sector:

2021 2020
Withholding tax recoverable 552,480 552,480
Interest due on fixed deposits 253,355 367,397
Interest due on loans 1,344,978 1,599,813
CUNA Mutual (Death Claim) 2,378,549 3,837,226
Other receivable 979,196 1,001,351

5,508,558 7,358,267

b. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that P.W.D. Co-operative Credit Union Limited will encounter difficulty in meeting its
short-term obligations associated with financial liabilities. Prudent liquidity risk management implies
maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount
of committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions.

The Credit Union manages this risk by keeping a substantial portion of its assets in liquid form in accordance
with regulatory guidelines.

The Credit Union is subject to a liquidity limit of 20% imposed by the Jamaica Credit Union League (JCCUL)
and compliance is regularly monitored. The key measure used by the Credit Union for managing liquidity risk
is the ratio of liquid assets to total savings deposit. For this purpose, liquid assets include cash and bank
balances, deposits held with JCCUL and highly liquid investments which are readily converted into cash
within three months. The liquid asset ratio at the end of the year was 27% (2020: 45%).

The Credit Union is also required to hold a liquidity reserve of 10% of specified liabilities. A minimum of 8%
is to be held with JCCUL while a maximum of 2% can be held with approved financial institutions. The
liquidity reserve ratio at the end of the year was 13% (2020: 13%).

There has been no change to the Credit Union’s exposure to liquidity risk or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.
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5. Financial risk management continued

b. Liquidity nisk continued
Liquidity sk management process

The Credit Union’s liquidity risk management process, as carried out within the Credit Union and
monitored by the Board of Directors, includes:

e Monitoring future cash flows and liquidity on a daily basis. This incorporates an assessment of
expected cash flows and the availability of high grade collateral which could be used to secure
funding if required;

e Maintaining a portfolio of highly marketable and diverse assets that can easily be liquidated as
protection against any unforeseen interruption to cash flow;

Maintaining committed lines of credit;
Optimizing cash returns on investment;
Managing the concentration and profile of debt maturities.

The matching and controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and liabilities is
fundamental to the management of the Credit Union. It is unlikely for Credit Unions to be completely
matched at any time since business transacted is often of uncertain term and of different types. An
unmatched position potentially enhances profitability, but can also increase the risk of loss.

The maturities of assets and liabilities and the ability to replace, at an acceptable cost, interest-bearing
liabilities as they mature, are important factors in assessing the liquidity of the Credit Union and its
exposure to changes in interest rates and exchange rates.

Financial liabilities cash flows

The tables below summarize the maturity profile of the Credit Union’s financial liabilities including interest
payments at 31 December based on contractual undiscounted payments.

Within 3 3to12 Over 12 Total Cash carrying
Months Months Months outflow Amount
$ $ $ $ $
As at December 31, 2021
Liabilities:
Savings deposits - 100,750,953 - 100,750,953 100,750,953
Long Term Loan _ 5,172,447 3,074,811 8,247,258 8,247,258
Members' voluntary shares 281,521,033 - - 281,521,033 281,521,033
Payables and accruals 20,975,099 - - 20,975,099 20,975,099
302,496,132 105,923,400 3,074,811 411494343 411,494343
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5. Financial risk management continued

b. Liquidity risk continued

Over 12
Within 3 3to12 Total Cash Carrying
Months Months Months Outflow Amount
$ $ $ $ $
As at December 31, 2020
Liabilities:
Savings deposits - - 96,122,642 96,122,642 96,122,642
Members' voluntary shares 267,265,625 . = 267,265,625 267,265,625
Payables and accruals 23,835,507 - - 23,835,507 23,835,507
291,101,132 - 96,122,642 387,223 774 387,223 774

Assets available to meet all of the liabilities and to cover financial liabilities include cash and short term
investments.

The Credit Union has a documented assets and liabilities policy in place that guides the management of its
liquidity risks.

c. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, through foreign exchanges rates, interest rates, and
equity prices, will cause fluctuations to the fair values and cash flows of financial instrument holdings.
Market risk affects loans and borrowings, deposits, investments, and derivative financial investments.

The Credit Union takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks mainly arise from
changes in foreign currency exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices and will affect the Credit
Union's income or value of its portfolio of financial instruments. Market risk is monitored by the General
Manager who carries out extensive reviews and monitors the price movement of financial assets on the local
markets. Market risk exposures are measured using sensitivity analysis.

There has been no change to the Credit Union's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the market value of, or the cash flows from, financial instruments will vary
because of exchange rate fluctuations. The Credit Union is exposed to foreign currency risk due to
fluctuations in exchange rates on transactions and balances that are denominated in currencies other than
the Jamaican dollar. The Credit Union is primarily exposed to the United States dollars (US$). There was no
exposure to foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because
of changes in market interest rates.

Floating rate instruments expose the Credit Union to cash flow interest rate risk, whereas fixed interest rate
instruments expose the Credit Union to fair value interest rate risk.
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5. Financial risk management continued

c. Market risk continued

Liquid assets are held for the short term and, accordingly would substantially reflect prevailing interest rates
in the financial market. Savings deposits and external credits are accepted from, and loans given to,
members at a fixed rate of interest which is fairly stable. Accordingly, there is no significant exposure to
interest rate risk.

A summary of interest rate gap position is as follows:

Within 3 3to12 Non- rate
months months Overi2 sensitive 2021
$ $ months $ $

Assets
Loans to members 3,125,959 8,464,554 379,360,927 - 390,951,440
Financial investments - - 36,678,663 - 36,678,663
Liquid Assets 23,696,978 - - - 23,696,978
Bank and cash, earning - - - 423,438 423,438
Bank and cash, non-earning - - - 3,308,144 3,308,144
Total assets 26,822,937 8,464,554 416,039,590 3,731,582 455,058,663
Liabilities
Savings deposit - 100,750,953 - - 100,750,953
Members' voluntary shares 281,521,033 - - - 281,521,033
Long Term Loan 1,293,112 3,879,335 3,074,811 - 8,247,258
Total financial liabilities 282,814,145 104,630,288 3,074,811 - 390,519,244
Net interest rate gap (255,991,208) (96,165,734) 412,964,779 3,731,582 64,539,419
Cumulative gap (255,991,208) (352,156,942) 60,807,837 64,539,419 o

Within 3 3to12 Over 12 Non- rate

months months months sensitive 2020

$ $ $ $ $

Assets
Loans to members 2,301,256 6,258,356 356,639,204 = 365,198,816
Financial investments - - 16,530,105 - 16,530,105
Liguid assets 40,924,152 - - - 40,924,152
Bank and cash, earning - - - 280,657 280,657
Bank and cash, non-earning - - - 2,538,838 2,538,838
Total assets 43,225,408 6,258,356 373,169,309 2,819,495 425,472,568
Liabilities
Savings deposit - 96,122,642 - - 96,122,642
Members' voluntary shares 267,265,625 - - - 267,265,625
Total Financial liabilities 267,265,625 96,122,642 - - 363,388,267
Total interest rate gap (224,040,217) (89,864,286) 373,169,309 2,819,495 62,084,301
Cumulative gap (224,040,217) (313,904,503) 59,264,806 62,084,301 -
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5. Financial risk management continued

c. Market risk continued
Interest rate profile:

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Credit Union's interest-bearing financial instruments
reflected at the average yields by the earlier of contractual re-pricing and maturity dates was as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Fixed rate financial assets:
Loans to member 5% - 24% 5% - 24%
Liquid assets 1.25% 1.25%
Fixed rate financial liabilities
Savings deposits: 3% - 6% 3% - 5%

The Credit Union does not account for any fixed rate financial asset and liability at fair value through profit or
loss and therefore a change in interest rates at the statement of financial position date would not affect profit
or loss or equity. The Credit Union has no variable rate financial instrument at the statement of financial
position date.

Sensitivity Analysis
An increase of 100 basis points in interest rates would have increased profit and equity by the amounts

shown below. The analysis assumes that all other variables in particular, foreign currency rates remain
constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2020.

2021 2020
$ $
Variable rate instruments 575,719 502,057

An alternative scenario of a decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates would have reduced profit and
equity by the amounts shown below.

2021 2020
$ $
Variable rate instruments 575,719 502,057

Equity price risk

Equity price risk arises from available-for-sale equity securities held by the Credit Union as part of its
investment portfolio. Management monitors the mix of debt and equity securities in its investment portfolio
based on market expectations. The primary goal of the Credit Union’s investment strategy is to maximize
return on investment.
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5. Financial risk management continued

d. Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of direct or indirect loss arising from a wide variety of causes associated with the
entity's processes, personnel, technology and infrastructure, and from external factors other than financial
risks such as those arising from legal and regulatory requirements and generally accepted standards of
corporate behaviour.

The company's objective is to manage operational risk so as to balance the avoidance of financial losses
and damage to its reputation with overall cost effectiveness and to avoid control procedures that restrict
initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the development and implementation of controls to identify operational risk is
assigned to the Finance and Audit Committee. This responsibility is supported by overall requirements for
the management of operational risk in the following areas:

e Requirements for the periodic assessment of operational risks faced, and the adequacy of controls and
procedures to address the risks identified.

¢ Requirements for the appropriate segregation of duties, including the independent authorisation of
transactions.

o Requirements for the reconciliation and monitoring of transactions.

o Compliance with regulatory and other legal requirements.

¢ Documentation of controls and procedures.

» Requirements for the reporting of operational losses and proposed remedial action.

o Development of contingency plans.

e Training and professional development
Ethical and business standards.

e Risk mitigation, including insurance where this is effective.

Compliance with Credit Union policies is supported by a programme of periodic reviews undertaken by
Internal Audit. The results of Internal Audit reviews are discussed with the management of the business unit
to which they relate, with summaries submitted to the Supervisory Committee, Senior Management and the
Board of Directors.
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5. Financial risk management continued
e. Capital management

The Credit Union’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Credit Union's ability to continue as
a going concern in order to provide returns for members and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain
an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital as well as meet externally imposed capital
requirements. The Board of Directors monitors the return on capital, which the Credit Union defines as net
operating income divided by total members’ equity. The Board of Directors also monitors the level of
dividends to members.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Credit Union monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including ‘current and non-current borrowings’ less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as
‘equity’ as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt

During 2021, the Credit Union’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2020, was to maintain the gearing
ratio within 75% to 83%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2021 and 2020 were as follows

2021 2020
$ $
Total Borrowing (Note 18, 19 and 20) 390,519,244 363,388,267
Less : cash and cash equivalent (note 14 and 15) (27,428,560) (43,743,642)
Net debt 363,090,684 319,644,625
Equity 73,610,583 68,800,588
Total capital 436,701,267 388,445,213
Gearing ratio % 83% 82%

There was no change to the Credit Union’s approach to capital management during the year.
The Credit Union complied with all externally imposed capital requirements to which they were subjected
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6. Income

Interest income calculated using the effective interest rate method:

Loans to members:
Interest on personal loan
Interest on payday loans
Interest on purchase loans
Interest on staff loans
Interest on car loans
Interest on quick access loans
Interest on computer loans
Interest on education loans
Interest on staff car loans
Interest on motor vehicle loans
Interest on consolidation loans

Liquid investments:
Interest on JCCUL - CuCash

Interest on Barita
Interest on Cumax bond and repo

Financial investments:
Interest on JCCUL - Mortgage fund

Interest income /(expense) on JCCUL - Security Deposit

Interest on Sagicor Select fund

Loss on Cumax Wealth Management investment

Total interest income

2021 2020
$ $
22,226,686 21,849,826
169,151 174,076
5754118 5,902,755
181,119 123,155
7,724,754 5585363
2473643 2,495,207
85,678 55,621
192,214 139,921
30,202 51,540
19,129 37,772
24,023,070 18,297,675
62,879,764 54,712,911
487,735 965,166
484,623 382,863
193,870 -
1,166,228 1,348,029
76,952 62,215
11,881 (30,110)
4,887 1,255
(105,992) -
(12,272) 33,360
64,033,720 56,094,300
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7. Interest expenses

2021 2020
$ $
Members' deposits:
Interest expense -Deposits 2,238,977 3,037,854
Interest expense / (income)- Partner plan 9,822 (7,482)
External credit:
Interest expense - Shares 2,764,933 2,839,909
Interest expense - TransJamaica Highway - 1,240
Other financial cost:
Interest expense - CUFMC 230,063 B
Total 5,243,795 5,871,521
8. Operating expenses
2021 2020
$ $
Staff costs
Employees salaries and Allowance 19,869,705 16,903,800
Employees Benefit 3,652,489 3,395,561
Education and Training 78,660 170,931
Staff Travel and Related Expenses 2,343,266 2,063,736

25,944,120 22,534,028

Administrative expenses

Audit and accounting fee 1,350,000 1,600,000
Bank charges 915,443 941,389
Consulting and professional fees 1,168,924 B

Electricity & water 1,659,601 1,452,527
Insurance 119,123 153,122
Life savings and loan protection insurance - general 3,501,714 3,421,152
Postage - 4,800
Stationery and office expenses 2,367,288 1,643,612
Repairs and maintenance 1,294 220 1,752,975
Security 635,130 419,955
Entertainment and travelling 361,763 398,902
Telephone and Internet 3,142,032 2,741,998
Depreciation 3,428 462 2,974 858
Other expenses 209,214 15,000

20,152,914 17,520,290

Marketing and Promotion
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8. Operating expenses continued
2021 2020
$ $
Publicity and promotion 643,713 685,303
643,713 685,303
Representation and Affiliation
League and other dues 1,651,940 1,323,049
Seminars and meetings 60,504 622,133
Board of Directors 604,000 885,371
Committees 1,068,000 1,123,527
Annual General Meeting 2,125,725 2,225,066
Volunteer Training 438,186 318,407
5,948,355 6,497 5653
Total operating expense 52,689,102 47,237,174
9. Loans to members
2021 2020
$ $
Balance as at January 1 369,406,639 295,876,456
Loans granted 81,274,062 70,624,979
450,680,701 366,501,435
Repayment (110,310,273) (112,965,551)
Transfers 58,862,068 115,735,894
399,232,496 369,271,778
Provision for loans losses (expected credit loss) (8,281,056) (4,072,963)
390,951,440 365,198,815
a. Loans net of provision for loan losses at December 31 are as follows:
2021 2020
$ $
Within 3 months 3,125,959 2,301,256
From 3 months to 1 years 8,464,554 6,258,356
From 1 to 6 years 379,360,927 356,639,203
390,951,440 365,198,815
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9. Loans to members continued

b. The maximum exposure to credit risk for loans to members as at year-end by type of loans was:

2021 2020
$ $
Home Equity 45,190,252 49,535,966
Motor Vehicle 88,294,082 81,976,285
Loans within shares / savings 115,845,143 107,719,989
Unsecured 141,140,332 119,112,325
Others 8,762,687 10,927,213

399,232,496 369,271,778

c. The credit quality of loans is summarized as follows:

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3
(12month  (Lifetime  (Lifetime 2021
ECL) ECL) ECL) Total
$ $ $ $
Members Loans 392,233,746 1,662,094 5,336,656 399,232 496
Less Allowance (3,919,337) (1,662,094) (2,699,625) (8,281,056)
Total carrying amount 388,314,409 - 2,637,031 390,951,440

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3

(12month  (Lifetime  (Lifetime 2020

ECL) ECL) ECL) Total

$ $ $ $
Members Loans 364,564,238 2,692,723 2,014,817 369,271,778
Less allowance (2,541,152) (794,642) (737,169)  (4,072,963)
Total carrying amount 362,023,086 1,898,081 _ 1,277,648 _365,198,815
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9. Loans to members continued

d. Movements on the provision for expected credit loss on loans to members are as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Balance at beginning of year 4,072,963 4,569,837
Loans written-off (618,433) (2,296,874)
Increase / (decrease) in provision for the year - charged to profit & loss 4,826,526 1,800,000
8,281,056 4,072,963

e. Delinquent loans

At December 31, 2021, there were twenty (20) ((2020: fifteen (15)) delinquent loans aged as disclosed
below. The total loan loss provision derived below is consistent with the loan loss provision rules of
League. The total provision for 2021 was $2,337,460 (2020: $920,076). The provision required under the
IFRS provisioning rules as indicated in Note 9 (f) belowi $8,281,056 (2020: $4,072,963). These loans are
summarized as follows:

Savings PEA_R!'S
held Prow_snon
Total Delinquent against Required
number loans loans Exposure 2021
Number of Months in arrears of loans $ $ $ Rate % $
Less than 2 months 3 993,336 - - 0% -
2 to 3 months 4 668,758 - 668,758 10% 66,876
3 to 6 months 4 3,104,698 243,055 2,861,643 30% 931,409
6 to 12 months 12 2,231,958 183,746 2,048,212 60% 1,339,175
Total 23 6,998,750 426,801 5,578,613 100% 2,337,460
Savings PEA_R!'S
held Prow_smn
Total Delinquent  against Required
number loans loans Exposure 2020
Number of Months in arrears of loans $ $ $ Rate % $
Less than 2 months 7 966,710 1,039,030 (2,654,773) 0% -
2 to 3 months 4 2,339,915 99,386 33,773 10% 233,992
3 to 6 months 1 101,537 16,076 1,452,876 30% 30,460
6 to 12 months 3 1,092,706 69,463 1,425,014 60% 655,624
Total 12 4,500,868 1,223,955 256,890 920,076
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9. Loans to members continued

f.  Provision for loan impairment

2021 2020
$ $
Provision at beginning of year as per IFRS 4,072,963 4,569,837
Additional amounts provided for during the year 4,826,526 1,800,000
Bad debt written off (618,433) (2,296,874)
Provision for impairment at the end of the year as per IFRS 8,281,056 4,072,963
Provision for impairment in accordance with League provisioning rules 2,337,460 920,076

10. Financial Investments

Carrying Carrying
Over 5 years value 2021 value 2020

$ $ $
Fair value through profit and loss
Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League:
Mortgage Fund 3,119,882 3,119,882 3,042,932
Security Deposits 1,137,943 1,137,943 1,126,062

4,257,825 4,257,825 4,168,994
Deferred Shares:-

C&W Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union 4,000,000 4,000,000 4,040,000
4,000,000 4,000,000 4,040,000

Unquoted shares

Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League:

Ordinary shares 976,740 976,740 976,740
Permanent shares 2,007,555 2,007,555 2,007,555
QNET shares 147,865 147,865 147,865
Credit Union Fund Management Company ordinary shares 3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
CUMAX Equity Fund 8,433,074 8,433,074 -

CUMAX Unsecured Note 6% -2023 12,000,000 12,000,000 -

Sagicor Select Fund 1,005,000 1,005,000 1,246,200
TransJamaican Highway Limited 850,604 850,604 942,751

28,420,838 28,420,838 8,321,111
36,678,663 36,678,663 16,530,105
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11. Investment property

Cost

At January 01, 2021
Opening Balance
At December 31, 2021

Depreciation and impairment losses
Opening balance

Charge for the year
At December 31, 2021

Carrying amount
December 31, 2020

December 31, 2021

Land Building Total
$ $ $
6,000,000 4,000,000 10,000,000
6,000,000 4,000,000 10,000,000
i (599,998)  (599,998)
= (101,124)  (101,124)
- (701,122)  (701,122)
6,000,000 3,400,002 9,400,002
6,000,000 3,298,878 9,298,878

At December 31, 2021 the fair value of the investment property as accessed by management amounted to
$13,200,000 (2020 - $13,200,000) The property is located at Lot No. 134, 60 Montgomery Avenue Kingston
10 and was appraised by Wilcan and Associates, Licensed Real Estate Dealers on October 6, 2017.
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12. Property, plant and equipment

At cost or valuation:-
At January 1, 2020
Additions

At December 31, 2021

Accumulated
Depreciation:-
At January 1, 2020

Depreciation

At December 31, 2021

Net book
December 31, 2020
Net book

December 31, 2021

value

value

Furniture Office IT Computer Leasehold
and fixtures equipment equipment software improvements Total
$ $ $ $ $ $
1,616,498 4,295980 2,322,686 8,838,893 2,554,456 19,628,513
51,000 1,227,483 1,729,838 878,012 322,300 4,208,633
1,667,498 5523463 4,052,524 9,716,905 2,876,756 23,837,146
(1,495,647) (2,534,210) (1,923,220) (5,099,978) (1,740,797)  (12,793,852)
(42,557) (558,135) (345,035) (2,210,441) (171,170) (3,327,338)
(1,538,204) (3,092,345) (2,268,255) (7,310,419) (1,911,967)  (16,121,190)
120,851 1,761,770 399,466 3,738,915 813,659 6,834,661
129,294 2431,118 1,784,269 2,406,486 964,789 7,715,956
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13. Retirement benefit asset

a. Pension Scheme

The Credit Union participates in a multi-employer based, contributory defined benefit pension plan, which is
open to all permanent employees and is managed by the Jamaica Co-operative Credit Union League. The
scheme is funded by eligible employees’ contributions of 5% and employer contributions, which is currently
at 8% or as recommended by independent actuaries consequent on the annual reviews of the scheme.
Retirement benefits are based on average salary for the last three (3) years of pensionable service. The
scheme is valued by independent actuaries using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The scheme was closed
to new members effective December 31, 2016. The latest actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31
December 2021 which determined that the scheme was adequately funded at that date. The amounts
recognized in the statement of financial position are determined as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Present value of funded obligations 47,754,000 43,412,000
Fair value of plan assets (65,415,000) (62,594,871)
Change in effect of asset ceiling 10,138,129 12,224,000
Asset recognized in the statement of financial position (7,522,871) (6,958,871)

b. Changes in the present value of obligation

Movement in the net liability/(asset) for defined benefit obligations recognized in the statement of financial

position.
2021 2020
$ $

Present value of obligation at beginning of year 43,412,000 41,198,000
Employer's current service cost 863,000 832,000
Employee's contribution 412,000 394,000
Interest Cover 3,859,000 2,988,000
Benefits paid (1,070,000) (3,112,000)
Actuarial (gain) / loss - experience adjustments (1,167,000) 1,637,000
Actuarial (gain) / loss - changes in financial assumptions 1,445,000 (525,000)
Balance at the end of year 47,754,000 43,412,000
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13. Retirement benefit asset continued

Movement in plan assets

2021 2020
$ $
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year 62,595,000 61,327,000
Contribution paid 973,000 932,000
Expected return on plan asset 5,629,000 4 518,000
Benefits paid (1,070,000) (3,112,000)
Actuarial (gain) / loss on plan assets (2,432,000) (719,000)
Administrative expenses (280,000) (351,000)
Fair value of plan assets at end of year 65,415,000 62,595,000
Plan assets consist of the following:
2021 2020
$ $
Equities 15,131,000 12,740,000
Fixed income securities 35,500,000 35,223,000
Real estate 15,661,000 15,866,000
Other (877,000) (1,232,000)
65,415,000 62,597,000
The amounts recognized in the statement of income and expenses are as follows:
2021 2020
$ $
Current service cost 863,000 832,000
Interest cost 3,859,000 2,988,000
Expected return on asset (5,628,000) (4,518,000)
Administrative expense 280,000 351,000
Interest cost on asset ceiling 1,100,000 953,000
Included in staff cost 474,000 606,000
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13. Retirement benefit asset continued
f. The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:
2021 2020
$ $
Discount rate 8% 9%
Expected return on plan assets 5.5% 6.5%
Future salaries increase 3.75% 4 5%
Price inflation (CPl) 5% 6%
g. Historical information
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
$'000 $'000 $'000 $'000 $'000
Present value of defined obligation 47,754 43,412 41,198 60,231 50,739
Fair value of plan assets 65,415 62595 61,327 69,043 64,686
Surplus in plan (17,661) (19,183) (20,129) (8,811) (13,948)
Experience adjustments arising on plan assets gain / (loss) (2,432) (719) 1,828 (841) 1,165
Experience adjustments arising on plan liabilities gain /
(1,167) 1,637 (8,603) (648) 2,781

(loss)

h. Expected pension contributions

The estimated pension contributions expected to be paid into the plan during the next financial year is
$560,000 (2020: $540,000).

14. Liquid assets

Within 3 Carrying Carrying
months value 2021  value 2020
$ $ $
Measured at amortised cost
CUMAX Money Market Fund:
8,081,978 8,081,978 30,924,152
Measure at fair value through profit and loss
CUMAX- Resale Agreement
5,000,000 5,000,000 -
Barita Investments 10,615,000 10,615,000 10,000,000
15,615,000 15,615,000 10,000,000
23,696,978 23,696,978 40,924,152
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15.

16.

14. Liquid assets continued

continued

Cash and cash equivalents

Earning asset
Sagicor current account

BNS Current Account
Cash on hand

Total cash and cash equivalents

Receivables and prepayment

Interest due on fixed
deposits

Withholding tax recoverable
Interest due on Loans

Cuna Insurance Claim
Other receivable

The estimated fair value of these resale agreements is assumed to approximate their carrying value. The
fair value of the underlying securities at the reporting date was $10,615,000 (2020: $10,000,000).

2021 2020
$ $
423,438 280,657
423,438 280,657
3,046,977 2,185,499
261,167 353,334
3,308,144 2,538,833
3,731,582 2,819,490
2021 2020
$ $
253,355 367,397
552,480 552,480
1,344,978 1,999,813
2,378,549 3,837,226
979,196 1,001,351
5,508,558 7,358,267
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17. Institutional capital

2021 2020
$ $
Other reserve 11,853,320 10,858,139
Permanent Shares (note 22) 5,647,355 5,560,482
Statutory and legal reserves (note 22a) 28,056,654 28,056,654
Entrance Fee 15,450 10,450

45,572,779 44,485,725

Institutional capital forms a part of the permanent capital of the Credit Union and is not available for
distribution.

18. Long Term Borrowing

2021 2020
$ $
Cumas Wealth Management Loan: (2021 - 2023) 6% 8,247,258 -
Less current portion (5,172,447) -
Non current portion 3,074,811 -

This represents the outstanding balance of loan proceeds of $10,400,000 received from Cumas Wealth
Management Limited on July 30, 2021. The loan is repayable over a twenty four (24) months period at an
interest rate of 6% per annum. The security held by Cumas Wealth Management Limited on this loan
represents a bond purchased by PWD Co-operative Credit Union Limited from Cumas Wealth Management
Limited on September 17, 2021 at a cost of $10,000,000 and generating interestat a rate of 6% per annum.

19. Members voluntary share capital

2021 2020
$ $
Balance at January 1 267,265,625 247,378,061
Amount subscribed 49,167,886 49,959,621
Withdrawals (34,912,478) (30,072,057)

281,521,033 267,265,625

Members’ shares are withdrawable and are eligible to participate in dividend payments as determined by
the annual general meeting of the Credit Union. No member may own more than 20% of the members
voluntary share capital.

A minimum of one share in the Credit Union gives each member the right to vote at the Annual General
Meeting. Shares are transferable to another member or anyone who is eligible for membership with the
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consent of the Board of Directors. Shares may be withdrawn wholly or partially by the member, but the
Board may require a member to give notice.

Voluntary Shares are not a part of rnisk capital. The following rights and restrictions are attached to
Voluntary Shares:

1. Money paid into Voluntary Shares may be withdrawn in whole or in part on any day when the Credit
Union is open for business, but the Board of Directors shall reserve the right at any time to require
member to give notice not exceeding six (8) months; provided however that no member may

withdraw any shareholding below the amount of his liability to the Credit Union as a borrower or co-
maker.

2. Voluntary Shares shall be treated as liabilities of the Credit Union.

3. Subject to the profitability of the Society, the Board of Directors may recommend the declaration and
payment of dividends on Voluntary Shares in amounts and at times as it may determine.

4. The Credit Union shall have a lien on all Voluntary Shares and deposits of a member for, and to the

extent of, any sum due to the Credit Union from the said member or any loan endorsed by the
member.

5. Voluntary Share accounts are required for members to utilize the products and services of the Credit
Union as determined by the Board of Directors from time to time.

20. Savings deposits

2021 2020
$ $

Ordinary deposits
Balance as at January 1 96,122,642 61,215,254
Receipts 44,064,651 52,083,675
Withdrawal (41,631,773) (44,483,196)
Other Credits 949,941 2,008,214
Balance as at December 31 99,505,461 70,823,947
Other deposits 1,245,492 25,298,695

100,750,953 96,122,642

21. Payables and Accruals
2021 2020
$ $

Payables 14,257,489 13,086,900
Accrued Interest 2,764,933 3,149,395
Deceased members 1,543,129 6,592,120
Staff vacation accrued 2,145,994 802,264
Non members' deposit 263,554 204,828

20,975,099 23,835,507
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22. Permanent share capital

2021 2020
$ $
Amount subscribed 5,647,355 5,560,482

‘Permanent shares’ represents equity shares, and forms part of the capital of the Credit Union.

The permanent share capital of the Credit Union is unlimited and divided into shares of no par value. The
minimum number of permanent shares that a member can subscribe to is three thousand dollars
($3,000). No member may own more than 20% of the permanent share capital.

a. Statutory reserve

The statutory and legal reserves are maintained in accordance with the provisions of the Co-operative
Societies Act which require that a minimum of 20% of net surplus be carried to a reserve fund. Upon
application by a Registered Society, the Registrar may allow the required percentage to be reduced, but not
below 10%. The transfer is calculated on net surplus net of change in the loan loss reserve.
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23. Retirement Benefit reserve

The retirement benefit reserve represents the pension surplus arising on the actual valuation, under IAS 19,
of the pension scheme in which the Credit Union participates. Annual changes in the value of the scheme
are shown in the profit or loss, and other comprehensive income then transferred to this reserve.

24. Revaluation reserve

Revaluation reserve represents the surplus arising on the revaluation of the Credit Union's furniture and
fixtures, office equipment, computers and building (Note 9 and 10).

25. Permanent share transfer fund
This represents amounts transferred to non-distributable reserve from net surplus to provide for the purpose

of redeeming permanent shares.

26. Appropriations

2021 2020
$ $
Honoraria - 100,000
Dividends - 164,657
Appropriations - 100,000
Social / Charitable reserves - 125,000
- 489,657
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27. Going concern

Impending regulations by the Bank of Jamaica (BOJ) is expected to bring Credit Union Co-operatives
Societies under the regulatory ambit of the Minister of Finance and the Public Service and the Bank of
Jamaica later this year.

Accordingly, the proposed Credit Union Act contains the substantive prudential requirements to which credit
unions will be subject once the regulatory regime comes into effect.

Accordingly, the Credit Union Act will cover, among other things, licensing, capital, reserves, prohibited
business, remedial and intervention processes as well as defines the role of specially authorized credit
unions.

It is anticipated that small credit unions such as PWD Co-operative Credit Union Limited could experience
difficulties complying with capital adequacy and other requirements when the new regulations take effect.

The management of the PWD Co-operative Credit Union Limited is convince that based on the anticipated
Credit Union Act and the other stipulations of the Bank of Jamaica (BOJ), PWD Co-operative Credit Union
Limited does not foresee any of the pending requirements causing the Credit Union to cease operation
within the next twelve (12) months. The Credit Union will be hampered mainly by its size, to cope with the
changes that will be required when the Credit Union movement comes under regulation by the BOJ. Some
of the increased costs will be in the form of additional specialist personnel that will have to be employed to
satisfy the compliance requirements of the new regulator. Other costs involved are technological costs to
implement new systems that aid with compliance, disaster recovery and reporting etc.

There are three options that the Board of Directors have been considering for the future of PWD Co-
operative Credit Union Limited. The options are:

Remain as a stand-alone Credit Union, while strengthening the internal capabilities that will be required for
licensing

Merge with other smaller Credit Unions to form a network Credit Union with PWD Co-operative Credit Union
as a branch

Transition to a Thrift Society and remain under the regulation of the Registrar of Co-operatives and Friendly
Societies.

While remaining as a stand-alone Credit Union will evidently be at a higher operating cost under the new
regulations, the widening of the bond for membership will drive new business and thereby the Credit Union
will be able to cover the additional expenses.

The merger discussions with the other credit unions, has not yet materialized into forming the network Credit
Union that was an option disclosed a year ago. The option is still available to share back office operations
through the Credit Union League. That option will create efficiencies and thereby cost reductions.
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28. Volunteers and other related party balances

Related parties include directors, and senior executives, all of whom are referred to as key management
personnel as well as Credit Unions closely connected to them and the pension scheme.

Related parties:

A related party is a person or entity that is related to the entity that is preparing its financial statements
(referred to in IAS 24 Related Party Disclosures as the “reporting entity”.

(f) A person or a close member of that person’s family is related to the reporting entity if that person;
s Has control or joint control over the reporting entity;

s Has significant influence over the reporting entity; or

s |Is a member of the key management personnel of the reporting entity or of a parent of the
reporting entity.

(b) The Credit Union is related to the reporting entity if any of the following conditions applies:

s The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the others);

e One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which the other entity is a member);

e Both Credit Unions are joint ventures of the same third party;

e One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is an associate of the third
entity;

e The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the
reporting entity or the Credit Union related to the reporting entity;

* The entity is controlled, or jointly controlled by a person identified in (A);

e A person identified in (A)(i) has significant influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity).

A related party transaction is a transfer of resources, services or obligations between related parties,
regardless of whether a price is charged.

(g) At December 31, 2021 19 (2020:19) members of the Credit Union's Board of Directors and Committee
members had savings of $ (2020: $16,714,122) and loans including interest totaling $ (2020:
$40,502,970). Loan balances including interest due from members of staff totaled $ (2020:
$24,710,862). During the year, no director or committee member received any loan, which
necessitated waiver of the loan policy. At December 31, 2021, all loans owing by directors, committee
members and members of staff were being repaid in accordance with their loan agreement.

(h) Compensation of key management personnel represents short-term employee benefit (note 27). Total
remuneration is included in personnel expenses ( note 6).
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29. Comparison of ledger balances

Voluntary Permanent
Shares Shares Loans Deposits
$ $ $ $
Personal ledger 281,468,196 5,647,355 398,487,049 100,435,278
General ledger 281,521,033 5,647,355 398,329,465 100,750,953
(52,837) - 157,584 (315,675)

30. Insurance
a. Fidelity insurance coverage

During the year, the Credit Union had fidelity insurance coverage with British Caribbean Insurance Credit
Union Limited. The total premium for the year was $94,852.32 (2020: $94,872.32).

b. Life savings and loan protection coverage

During the year, the Credit Union had life savings and loan protection coverage with Cuna Mutual Insurance
Credit Union Limited. The total premium for the year was $3,501,714 (2020: $3,421,152).

31. Key management compensation

Key management compensation is as follows:

2021 2020
$ $
Salaries, bonus and employee benefits (included in staff cost and
project expense) 6,531,477 6,053,824

Key management personnel comprises the following positions:

(a) Office Manager
(b) Assistant Office Manager / Accountant

32. Commitments and fair values

(i) At December 31, 2021, there were loan commitments to members totaling $NIL (2020: $NIL) for the
Credit Union.
(j) At December 31, 2021, total capital commitments by the Credit Union amounted to $NIL (2020: $NIL).
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Fair values

Fair value amounts represents of arms length's length consideration that would be currently agreed upon
between knowledgeable, willing partieswho are under no compulsionto act and is best evidenced by a
quoted market price if one exists.

Many of the Credit Union’s financial instruments lack an available trading market. Therefore, these
instruments have been valued using present value or other valuation techniques and may not necessarily
be indicative of the amounts realizable in an immediate settlement of the instruments.

The fair values of cash resources, securities purchased under resale agreements, other assets, other
liabilities, are assumed to approximate their carrying values due to their short-term nature.

The fair value of the quoted equities is determined based on their quoted bid price at the balance sheet
date. The fair value of Government of Jamaica securities is estimated by discounting the future cash flows
of the securities at the estimated yields at the reporting date for similar securities. The estimated fair values
of loans to members are assumed to be the principal receivable less any allowance for loan losses.

The fair value of external credits and deposits payable on demand or after notice are assumed to be equal
to their carrying values. The estimated fair values of fixed rate deposits payable within a year are assumed
to approximate their carrying values, due to their short-term nature.

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method. The different
levels have been defined as follows:

¢ Level 1:Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices).

e Level 3: Inputs or the asset or liability that is not based on observable market data (unobservable

inputs).
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
$ $ $ $
December 31, 2021
Measured at FVTPL- Financial assets - 36,678,663 - 36,678,663
December 31, 2020
Measured at FVTPL- Financial assets - 16,530,105 - 16,530,105

There were no financial assets valued using the level 1or 3 hierarchy in the current or previous year.
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Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with carrying amounts shown in the balance sheet,

are as follows:

Financial assets:
Loans to members

Financial investments

Liquid assets

Cash & cash equivalent - earnings
Cash and cash equivalents
Receivables & prepayments

Financial liabilities:
Savings deposit, non-current
Voluntary shares

Payables and accruals

Long Term Loan

2021 2020
Carrying Carrying
value Fair value value Fair value
$ $ $ $
390,342,382 390,342,382 365,148,816 365,148,816
36,678,663 36,678,663 16,530,105 16,530,105
23,696,978 23,696,978 40,924,152 40,924,152
423,438 423,438 1,635,233 1,635,233
3,308,144 3,308,144 3,529,570 3,529,570
6,116,617 6,116,617 7,385,267 7,385,267
460,566,222 460,566,222 435,153,143 435,153,143
100,750,953 100,750,953 96,074,787 96,074,787
281,521,033 281,521,033 267,316,625 267,316,625
20,975,099 20,975,099 23,291,097 23,291,097
8,247,258 8,247,258 - -
411,494,343 411,494,343 386,682,509 386,682,509

Fair value has been determined either by reference to the market value at the statement of financial position
date or by discounting the relevant cash flows using current interest rates for similar instruments.
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The following members are being nominated by the nominating Commitiee after expressing
their willingness to serve on the Board of Directors:

Recommended Term
Mr. Everal Barnett 1 Year
Mrs. lolyn Donald | Year
Mrs. Geraldine Miles 1 Year
Mr. Everton Walker 2 Years
Miss Cheryl Hawkins 2 Years
Miss Grace Bailey 2 Years
Miss Paula Brown 3 Years
Mr. Norris Gilbert 3 Years 4
Mr. Damon Escoffery 3 Years
CREDIT COMMITTEE

The members of the Credit Committee retiring are as follows (Article IX, Rule No.41):

Retiring 2022
Mr. Patrick Rose
Ms. Janet Stewart

Retiring 2023 Unexpired Time
Mr. Wayne Walton | Year
Miss Kerriann Clarke 1 Year
Miss Paula Hamilton l Year

On expressing their willingness to serve, these members are being nominated by the

Committee: \
Recommended Term

Mr. Patrick Rose 2 Years

Ms. Janet Stewarl 2 Years \

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE
The members of the Supervisory Committee retiring are as follows (Article X, Rule No.49):

Retiring 2022

Mr. Lenson Lee

Mrs. Audrey Jones-Francis
Mrs. Althea Cole-Martin
Ms. Angelina Brown

Mr. Melvin Young
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MR. NORRIS GILBERT

Mr. Norris Gilbert is currently the Principal Finance Officer at the Ministry Agriculture and
Fisheries. Mr Gilbert has served the Credit Union in various capacities over his
twenty-eight years of membership. He was first elected to the Board in 2002 and served as
Vice President for the period 2006-2008 when he demitted office. He re-joined the Board
of Directors in 2010 and was elected as President until 2016. Currently he is serving on the
JCCUL Board and is the Treasurer. He is also a member of the CUMAX Board. Mr Gilbert
has a MSc. in Accounting (UWI) and Bachelors in Business Administration (UTECH). His
hobbies are attending sporting events and planning social events. He is a past student of the
St. Mary’s College.

MISS CHERYL HAWKINS

Miss Cheryl Hawkins is the Director of Planning and Administrative Services in the
Ministry of Finance and the Public Service (MOF&PS). Cheryl has been a member of the
Credit Union since 2000 and has served as a member of the Credit Committee during the
period June 2015 to June 201. Miss Hawkins holds a Master of Science in Human Resource
Development and a Bachelor of Science in Management Studies from the University of the
West Indies. She also holds a certificate in Project Management and has been exposed to
various training in Risk Management.

MR. EVERAL BARNETT

Mr. Everal Barnett is a retired Accounting Officer at the Accountant General Department.
He has been a member of the Credit Union for over 36 years and was elected to the Board
in June 1998. He currently serves on the Scholarship Committee. Mr Barnett enjoys being
a volunteer he is currently a member of KPC President Society of St. Vincent De Paul. His
hobbies are reading, photography and playing dominoes.

MISS GRACE BAILEY

Miss Grace Bailey has been an administrative professional for over twenty years and
currently works in the Shipping Policy and Research department of the Maritime Authority
of Jamaica since 2003. Miss Bailey is a graduate of the Caribbean Maritime University, and
her qualification is in the field of Logistics and Supply Chain Management. She also holds
Certification in Project Management which she completed at the University of the West
Indies Grace is a Justice of the Peace for the parish of Kingston and specializes in the areas
of Lock Up Visitation, Deportee Processing and Restorative Justice. Miss Bailey loves the
kitchen and enjoys cooking epicurean dishes.
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MR. DAMON ESCOFFERY

Mr. Damon Escoffery is currently a Senior Accounting Officer at the National Works
Agency. He has been a member of the Credit Union for over 24 years and has previously
served on the Supervisory Committee (May 2003 - May 2009) and was elected to the Board
of Directors in June 2009. He is currently serving as Treasurer and Chairman of the ALM
Committee. A past student of St. Catherine High School, Mr Escoffery is a sports
enthusiast, likes playing dominoes and playing music.

MR. EVERTON WALKER
Mr. Everton Walker is the former Financial System Manager (Retired). From the Ministry ‘
of Transport & Mining. He has been a member of The Credit Union since 1998, and a

volunteer for over 20 years, serving on both the Credit Committee and Board.

MRS. IOLYN DONALD

MRS. GERALDINE MILES
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MISS PAULA L. BROWN

CREDIT COMMITTEE

MR PATRICK ROSE

MS. JANET STEWART

Ms Janet Stewart is currently employed as a Senior Finance Officer at the National Works
Agency. She has been a member of the Credit Union since 1997 and has served on the
Credit Committee on many occasions. In her spare time, she enjoys crossword puzzle and
surfing the internet.

MRS. AUDREY JONES FRANCIS

Mrs. Audrey Jones Francis A Graduate of the University of West Indies, Mona. She holds a
Bachelor of Science Degree in Management Studies & Human Resource Management. She
has been currently employed to the National Works Agency from 2001 to present. She is
currently employed as Personnel and Industrial Relations Officer.
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Miss Paula L. Brown is a Transport Planner in the Ministry of Transport and Mining. She
has been a member of the Credit Union since 2005. Ms Brown is committed to public
service and her core interests are in government innovations, public administration, public
policy and planning, particularly for developing countries. She earned a BSc. from the
University of the West Indies, Mona, Jamaica with a dual concentration in International
Relations and Psychology as well as a MSc. in Social Research Methods and Statistics from
the University of Manchester, United Kingdom. In 2016, she earned her Master’s in Public
Administration from Harvard University, John F. Kennedy School of Government, USA.

Mr Patrick Rose is currently the Director of Planning and Research at the National Works
Agency. He holds a Bachelor of Science Degree in Civil Engineering from the University
of West Indies and has been a member of the Credit Union since 1992 and has served on the
Board between the period June 2006 to June 2016. Mr Rose is single and a father of two.
He enjoys table tennis and football and in his spare time he plays dominoes.
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MISS ANGELINA BROWN

Miss Angelina Brown is currently employed to the National Works Agency and has been a

member of the Credit Union since 1996. She currently serves on the Supervisory
Committee. Miss Brown holds a bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the
University of Technology. She is the mother of two and enjoys watching a good movie

in her spare time.

MRS. ALTHEA COLE-MARTIN
Mrs. Althea Cole-Martin is an Administrative Assistant to the Manager of Communication ‘
& Customer Services at the National Works Agency. She has been a member of the Credit
Union since 2000. Mrs. Cole-Martin is a current member of the Supervisory Committee.
She is the National Public Relations Officer for the Jamaica Association of Administrative

Professionals.

MR. LENSON LEE

Mr. Lenson Lee is a retired Auditor from the Ministry of Local Government. He has been
with the Credit Union since 1976 and a volunteer for over 10 years. He is currently a
member of the Supervisory Committee. He is a past student of Excelsior High School. He
holds an Accounting Certificate from the Management Institute for National Development
(MIND). Mr Lee enjoys watching sports and playing football.

MR. MELVIN YOUNG

Mr. Melvin Young is currently employed as a Senior Auditor in the Ministry of Transport
and Mining and has been a member of the Credit Union since 1998. Mr. Young is a past
student of Calabar High School and is a former track athlete. He is currently pursuing
a BSc. in Business Administration. Mr. Young is married and his hobbies are playing
dominoes and watching sports.

The Chairman and the members of the Nominating Committee thanks you for the
opportunity to serve its members.

LW ather

Everton Walker

Chairman
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